



a California joint powers agency

1776 Tribute Road, Suite 205
Sacramento, CA 95815
Office: 916.927.7223 Fax: 916.263.3341
www.calfairs.com

**AGENDA
CALIFORNIA AUTHORITY OF RACING FAIRS
LIVE RACING COMMITTEE MEETING
JOE BARKETT, CHAIR
11:00 A.M., TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2008**

Notice is hereby given that a teleconference meeting of the Live Racing Committee will commence at 11:00 A.M., Tuesday, June 3, 2008. The meeting will be held at the Kahn, Soares & Conway Sacramento office located at 1415 L Street, Suite 400, Sacramento, California 95814.

AGENDA

- I. Determination of Date, Time, and Location of Next Meeting.
- II. Approval of Minutes from May 6.
- III. Discussion and Action, if any, on a Combined Fair Meeting in 2009.
- IV. Updates, Discussion and Action, if any, on Implementation of AB 765.
- V. Discussion and Action, if any, on Racing Calendar for 2009 and Beyond.
- VI. Discussion and Action, if any, on Legislative Matters.
- VII. Executive Director's Report.

###

CODE SECTION EXCERPTS PERTINENT TO CONDUCT OF A COMBINED FAIR HORSE RACE MEETING

FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE SECTION 4058

4058. (a) Notwithstanding Section 4052, the California Exposition and State Fair, a district agricultural association fair, or county fair in the northern zone, with the approval of the Department of Food and Agriculture, may form an entity for conducting combined fair horseracing meetings and utilize their racing facilities for conducting horseracing meetings, with parimutuel wagering, on days other than the days on which general fair activities are conducted. A combined fair horseracing meeting pursuant to this section shall be a general fair activity for the purpose of Section 19549 of the Business and Professions Code.

(b) The association shall designate certain days of a mixed breed meeting held pursuant to this section as charity days with the proceeds therefrom to be distributed in accordance with Sections 19550 and 19556 of the Business and Professions Code.

(c) The association shall encourage the racing of emerging breeds of horses.

Business and Professions Code Horse Racing Law

19542. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, fairs that conduct live horse racing meetings in the northern zone may allow a joint powers authority to administer and distribute purses and to achieve the purposes of Section 19606.4.

19549.1. Notwithstanding Sections 19533 and **19549** or any other provision of this chapter, the board may allocate horse racing days for mixed breed meetings and combined fair horse racing meetings pursuant to Section 4058 of the Food and Agricultural **Code**, except as follows:

(a) Dates may only be allocated for a combined fair horse racing meeting between July 1 and October 31, and the total combined number of dates shall not exceed the total combined dates of the combined fair racing associations in 1995.

(b) Days may not be allocated for a mixed breed meeting or a combined fair horse racing meeting during the month of June at the California Exposition and State Fair if a standardbred meeting is being conducted at that facility during the month of June.

The mixed breed meetings shall be conducted by a person other than the fair and shall be subject to Section 19550. The mixed breed meetings shall encourage the racing of emerging breeds of horses.

2009 Northern California Race Dates DRAFT

December						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
					26	27
28	29	30	31			
5						

GGF Winter	84
GGF Spring	58
Total GGF	142

Pleasanton @ GGF	18
Pleasanton @ GGF	15
Total Pleasanton @ GGF	33

Pleasanton	11
Vallejo	10
Santa Rosa	12
GGF Summer Fairs Benefit	15

Ferndale Overlap	10
Cal Expo	11
Stockton	10
Fresno	11
Total Fairs	90

Simulcast Only	13
----------------	----

January						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	31
23						

February						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
20						

March						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30	31				
1 2 18						

April						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30		
20 2						

May						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30
31						
23						

June						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28	29	30				
15 5						

July						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30	31	
9 9 1 6						

August						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
						1
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30	31					
3 4 15 10 5						

September						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30			
6 4 1 10						

October						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	31
10 14						

November						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30					
20 1						

December						
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30	31		
15						

Calendar for year 2009 (United States)

January						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	31
4:☉	10:☽	17:☾	26:☿			

February						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
2:☾	9:☽	16:☿	24:☾			

March						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30	31				
4:☾	10:☽	18:☿	26:☾			

April						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30		
2:☾	9:☽	17:☿	24:☾			

May						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30
31						
1:☽	9:☾	17:☿	24:☾	30:☽		

June						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28	29	30				
7:☽	15:☿	22:☾	29:☽			

July						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30	31	
7:☽	15:☿	21:☾	28:☽			

August						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
						1
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30	31					
5:☽	13:☿	20:☾	27:☽			

September						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30			
4:☽	11:☿	18:☾	26:☽			

October						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	31
4:☽	11:☿	18:☾	25:☽			

November						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30					
2:☽	9:☿	16:☾	24:☽			

December						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30	31		
2:☽	8:☿	16:☾	24:☽	31:☽		

Holidays and Observances:		
Jan 1 New Year's Day	May 25 Memorial Day	Oct 31 Halloween
Jan 19 Martin Luther King Day	Jul 3 'Independence Day' observed	Nov 11 Veterans Day
Feb 14 Valentine's Day	Jul 4 Independence Day	Nov 26 Thanksgiving Day
Feb 16 Presidents' Day	Sep 7 Labor Day	Dec 25 Christmas Day
Apr 12 Easter Sunday	Oct 12 Columbus Day	

Calendar generated on www.timeanddate.com/calendar

Calendar for year 2010 (United States)

January						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30
31						
7:☉	15:☀	23:☾	30:☾			

February						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
1	2	3	4	5	6	
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28						
5:☉	13:☀	21:☾	28:☾			

March						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28	29	30	31			
7:☉	15:☀	23:☾	29:☾			

April						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	
6:☉	14:☀	21:☾	28:☾			

May						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
						1
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30	31					
6:☉	13:☀	20:☾	27:☾			

June						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30			
4:☉	12:☀	19:☾	26:☾			

July						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	31
4:☉	11:☀	18:☾	25:☾			

August						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30	31				
3:☉	9:☀	16:☾	24:☾			

September						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30		
1:☉	8:☀	15:☾	23:☾	30:☾		

October						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30
31						
7:☉	14:☀	22:☾	30:☾			

November						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30			
6:☉	13:☀	21:☾	28:☾			

December						
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30	31	
5:☉	13:☀	21:☾	27:☾			

Holidays and Observances:		
Jan 1	New Year's Day	
Jan 18	Martin Luther King Day	
Feb 14	Valentine's Day	
Feb 15	Presidents' Day	
Apr 4	Easter Sunday	
May 31	Memorial Day	
Jul 4	Independence Day	
Jul 5	'Independence Day' observed	
Sep 6	Labor Day	
Oct 11	Columbus Day	
Oct 31	Halloween	
Nov 2	Election Day	
Nov 11	Veterans Day	
Nov 25	Thanksgiving Day	
Dec 24	'Christmas Day' observed	
Dec 25	Christmas Day	
Dec 31	'New Year's Day' observed	

Calendar generated on www.timeanddate.com/calendar

Legislative Matters

These are certain of the horse racing issues that are currently being discussed as part of the industry's 2008 legislative agenda. This list is a work-in-progress.

1. Funding for Fairs;
2. Lift cap on imported races. One proposal: four (4) out-of-state full cards + up to six (6) Stakes races daily;
3. Statewide, year-round additional take-out to be used exclusively for racing facility improvements;
4. Language addressing changes in racing dates Central and Southern zone;
5. Northern zone: Raise cap on private association dates to 32/35 weeks;
6. Northern zone: Raise 14-day cap on Fair dates to 4 weeks;
7. Northern zone: Extend calendar window for combined Fair meeting to include June, making the window June 1-October 31;
8. Revise statute to specifically permit vanning and stabling fund to be used for debt service on funding for race track and backstretch facility improvements;
9. Increased commissions to satellite facilities.

CALIFORNIA AUTHORITY OF RACING FAIRS

Legislative Report - Last 10 Days

5/23/2008

[AB 813](#) (Portantino) **Harness racing: first aid and emergency medical services: wager distributions.** (E-05/20/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/19/2008-Urgency clause adopted. Senate amendments concurred in. To enrollment. (Ayes 72. Noes 0. Page 5188.)

Current Location: 05/19/2008-A ENROLLMENT

Digest: Existing law requires every racing association and racing fair to maintain specified equipment and staff for an on-track first aid facility. Existing law requires a qualified and licensed physician to be on duty at all times during live racing, except for any quarter horse racing at the racetrack if certain conditions are met.

This bill would apply the exception to having a qualified and licensed physician on duty at all times during live racing to a quarter horse racing association rather than applying it to any quarter horse racing at the racetrack, and would also except a harness racing association if certain conditions are met.

Existing law requires that the total percentage deducted from wagers at satellite wagering facilities in the northern zone be the same as deductions for wagers at the racetrack where the racing meeting is being conducted and amounts deducted are to be distributed as specified.

Existing law provides that, for harness meetings, 0.5% of the total amount handled by satellite wagering shall be distributed to a specified organization for the promotion of the program at satellite wagering facilities and 0.5% of the total amount handled by each satellite wagering facility shall be distributed according to a written agreement for each race meeting between the licensed racing association and the organization representing the horsemen participating in the meeting.

This bill would provide that, with respect to harness meetings, if there are funds unexpended from this 1%, those funds may be expended for other purposes with the consent of the horsemen and the racing association to benefit the horsemen, or the racing association, or both, pursuant to their agreement.

This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately as an urgency statute.

Laws: An act to amend Sections 19481.3 and 19605.7 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to horse racing, and declaring the urgency thereof, to take effect immediately.

History:

May 19 Urgency clause adopted. Senate amendments concurred in. To enrollment. (Ayes 72. Noes 0. Page 5188.)

May 15 From committee: With recommendation: That Senate amendments be concurred in. (Ayes 14. Noes 0.) (May 15).

May 12 Joint Rule 62(a), file notice waived.

May 5 Re-referred to Com. on G.O. pursuant to Assembly Rule 77.2.

Apr. 29 In Assembly. Concurrence in Senate amendments pending.

Apr. 28 Read third time. Urgency clause adopted. Passed and to Assembly. (Ayes 38. Noes 0. Page 3595.)

Mar. 12 Read second time, amended, and to third reading.

Mar. 11 From committee: Amend, and do pass as amended. (Ayes 8. Noes 0. Page 3105.) .

Feb. 7 From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to committee. Read second time, amended, and re-referred to Com. on G.O.

July 9 In committee: Hearing postponed by committee.

July 9 From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to committee. Read second time, amended, and re-referred to Com. on G.O.

June 20 In committee: Set, first hearing. Hearing canceled at the request of author.

June 7 Referred to Com. on G.O.

May 25 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 72. Noes 0. Page 1654.)

May 25 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

May 21 Read second time. To third reading.

May 17 From committee: Do pass. (Ayes 17. Noes 0.) (May 16).

Apr. 26 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 14. Noes 0.) (April 25).

Mar. 8 Referred to Com. on G.O.

Feb. 23 From printer. May be heard in committee March 25.

Feb. 22 Read first time. To print.

Organization
CARF

Subject
Horse

Racing

Notes: OPPOSE UNLESS AMENDED letter dated 7-6-07 authored by TOC, Drew J. Couto, President

[AB 865](#) (Davis) State agencies: live customer service agents. (A-01/22/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/13/2008-From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 8. Noes 0.) .

Current Location: 05/13/2008-S APPR.

Digest: Existing law requires each state agency to establish a procedure whereby incoming telephone calls on any public line shall be answered within 10 rings during regular business hours, subject to certain exceptions.

This bill would name these provisions the State Agency Live Customer Service Act. It would require each state agency to answer an incoming call on ~~any~~*its* main public line with a live customer service agent or automated telephone answering equipment with an automated prompt that allows a caller to select the option to speak with a live customer service agent, subject to certain exceptions.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Section 11022 of the Government Code, relating to state agencies.

History:

May 13 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 8. Noes 0.) .

Feb. 7 Referred to Com. on G.O.

Jan. 28 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 76. Noes 0. Page 3835.)

Jan. 28 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

Jan. 24 From committee: Do pass. (Ayes 16. Noes 0. Page 3814.) (January 24). Read second time. To third reading.

Jan. 23 Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Jan. 22 From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Read second time and amended.

Jan. 18 Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Jan. 17 Read second time and amended.

Jan. 16 From committee: Amend, do pass as amended, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 10. Noes 0.) (January 15).
Apr. 24 Re-referred to Com. on B. & P.
Apr. 23 From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com. on B. & P. Read second time and amended.
Apr. 17 In committee: Set, second hearing. Hearing canceled at the request of author.
Apr. 10 In committee: Set, first hearing. Hearing canceled at the request of author.
Mar. 12 Referred to Com. on B. & P.
Feb. 23 From printer. May be heard in committee March 25.
Feb. 22 Read first time. To print.

<i>Organization</i>	<i>Subject</i>
CARF	State

[AB](#) **(Galgiani) Horses: shows, competitions, and sales.** (I-
[1810](#) 01/16/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/13/2008-From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. with recommendation: To Consent Calendar. Re-referred. (Ayes 10. Noes 0.) .

Current Location: 05/13/2008-S APPR.

Digest: Existing law regulates horse shows, competitions, and sales. Existing law defines "event manager" for those purposes to be the person in charge of an event, including the person responsible for registering the event with the Department of Food and Agriculture.

This bill would change that definition to be the person in charge of an event, including the entity or individual financially responsible for the event that is responsible for registering the event with the department. Under existing law, the Secretary of Food and Agriculture is required to appoint an advisory committee, comprised of representatives from various organizations with an interest in horse shows, competitions, and sales. The committee is required to meet at least twice per year.

This bill would require the committee to meet once per year, with additional meetings to be called as deemed necessary by the chairperson. Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Sections 24001 and 24013.5 of the Food and Agricultural Code, relating to horses.

History:

May 13 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. with recommendation: To Consent Calendar. Re-referred. (Ayes 10. Noes 0.) .

May 1 Referred to Com. on G.O.

Apr. 24 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 68. Noes 0. Page 4841.)

Apr. 24 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

Apr. 17 Read second time. To Consent Calendar.

Apr. 16 From committee: Do pass. To Consent Calendar. (April 16).

Apr. 3 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 8. Noes 0. Page 4480.) (April 2).

Feb. 7 Referred to Com. on AGRI.

Jan. 17 From printer. May be heard in committee February 16.

Jan. 16 Read first time. To print.

Organization

CARF

Subject

Horse

Racing

**[AB](#)
[1852](#)**

(Jeffries) Sports betting pools. (I-01/30/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/15/2008-Referred to Com. on PUB. S.

Current Location: 05/15/2008-S PUB. S.

Calendar Events: 06/10/08 8:30 a.m. - John L. Burton Hearing Room (4203) SUPPORT AND OPPOSITION LETTERS DUE NO LATER THAN 5 P.M. 5/30, IN ROOM 2031 SEN PUBLIC SAFETY

Digest: Existing law makes it either a misdemeanor or a felony, punishable by imprisonment in either a county jail or in the state prison, for a person, whether or not for gain, hire, or reward, to make a betting pool or place a bet or wager on the result of any contest or event, including a sporting event, as specified.

This bill would create an exception to that provision, making it an infraction, punishable by a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars (\$500), for a person, not for gain, hire, or reward, other than that at stake under conditions available to every participant, to participate in a bet, wager, or

betting pool with another person or group of persons who are not acting for gain, hire, or reward other than that at stake under conditions available to every participant, on the result of any contest or event, including a sporting event, as specified.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Section 337a of, and to add Section 336.9 to, the Penal Code, relating to sports betting pools.

History:

May 15 Referred to Com. on PUB. S.

May 8 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 65. Noes 4. Page 5047.)

May 8 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

May 5 Read second time. To third reading.

May 1 From committee: Do pass. (Ayes 16. Noes 0.) (April 30).

Apr. 16 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 5. Noes 1.) (April 15).

Apr. 10 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on PUB. S. Re-referred. (Ayes 13. Noes 0.) (April 9).

Feb. 21 Referred to Coms. on G.O. and PUB. S.

Jan. 31 From printer. May be heard in committee March 1.

Jan. 30 Read first time. To print.

Organization

CARF

Subject

Betting

[AB 2026](#) (Levine) Gaming. (I-02/15/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-Do pass as amended.

Current Location: 04/30/2008-A APPR. SUSPENSE FILE

Digest: The Gambling Control Act provides for the licensure of certain individuals and establishments involved in various gambling activities, and for the regulation of those activities by the California Gambling Control Commission. Existing law provides for the enforcement of those regulations by the Department of Justice.

This bill would direct the California Gambling Control Commission, in

conjunction with the Department of Justice, to perform a study and report its findings to the Legislature by June 30, 2009, regarding authorizing intrastate Internet poker, as specified.
Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act relating to gaming.

History:

Apr. 30 In committee: Set, first hearing. Referred to APPR. suspense file.
Apr. 17 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 11. Noes 0.) (April 16).
Feb. 28 Referred to Com. on G.O.
Feb. 19 From printer. May be heard in committee March 20.
Feb. 15 Read first time. To print.

Organization

CARF

[AB 2048](#) (Silva) **Horse racing: harness or quarter horse races: out-of-state or out-of-country.** (A-04/09/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-Referred to Com. on G.O.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-S G.O.

Calendar Events: 06/24/08 9:30 a.m. - Room 3191 SEN
GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION

Digest: *Under existing law, the California Horse Racing Board is authorized to permit a harness or quarter horse association conducting a race meeting to accept wagers on the results of out-of-state, out-of-country, and sometimes other harness or quarter horse races, if specified conditions are met, including that the association conducts at least 7 live races and imports not more than 6 races on live racing days.*

This bill would revise that provision to instead permit the association to import not more than 8 races on live racing days.

Under existing law, revenues distributed to the state as license fees from horse racing are required to be deposited in the Fair and Exposition Fund and are continuously appropriated to the Department of Food and Agriculture for various regulatory and general governmental purposes.

By providing for the importation of additional out-of-state and out-of-country

racers, this bill would authorize additional wagering, and would increase the amount of continuously appropriated license fees, thereby making an appropriation.

~~Existing law gives the California Horse Racing Board the authority to regulate horse racing and parimutuel wagering on horse races in California. Existing law generally requires that any license granted to an association other than a fair shall be for only a single type of racing, except that the board may authorize the participation of thoroughbred and Appaloosa horses in quarter horse races subject to specified conditions. Existing law also provides that any association licensed to conduct quarter horse racing may apply to the board for, and be granted, the authority to conduct thoroughbred racing as part of its racing program, provided that specified conditions are met, including, among others, that the thoroughbred races are for a claiming price of not more than \$5,000.~~

~~This bill would increase the claiming price to not more than \$8,000.~~

~~Vote: majority 2/3 . Appropriation: ~~no~~ yes . Fiscal committee: ~~no~~ yes .~~

~~State-mandated local program: no.~~

Laws: An act to amend Section 19596.1 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to horse racing, and making an appropriation therefor.

History:

May 22 Referred to Com. on G.O.

May 15 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 72. Noes 1. Page 5138.)

May 15 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

May 5 Read second time. To third reading.

May 1 From committee: Do pass. (Ayes 16. Noes 0.) (April 30).

Apr. 17 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 11. Noes 0.) (April 16).

Apr. 10 Re-referred to Com. on G.O. In committee: Hearing postponed by committee.

Apr. 9 From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com. on G.O. Read second time and amended.

Feb. 28 Referred to Com. on G.O.

Feb. 20 From printer. May be heard in committee March 21.

Feb. 19 Read first time. To print.

Organization

CARF

AB (Plescia) Horse racing; thoroughbred racing; workers' compensation.

2103 (A-04/23/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-Referred to Com. on G.O.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-S G.O.

Calendar Events: 06/10/08 Anticipated Hearing SEN G.O.

Digest: Existing law, operative until January 1, 2009, provides that every thoroughbred association and fair that conducts a racing meet shall deduct a percentage of the total amount handled in exotic parimutuel pools of thoroughbred races, which shall be distributed to a thoroughbred racing association to defray costs of workers' compensation insurance in connection with thoroughbred horses that race in this state, as specified. Existing law provides that any funds that are not used to defray the cost of workers' compensation insurance shall either be carried forward to the subsequent year or used to reimburse racing associations for safety-related expenditures, as specified.

This bill would extend the operation of these provisions until January 1, 2014. The bill would also make conforming and technical, nonsubstantive changes.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Section 19605.75 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to horse racing.

History:

May 22 Referred to Com. on G.O.

May 15 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 75. Noes 0. Page 5165.)

May 15 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

May 12 Read second time. To Consent Calendar.

May 8 From committee: Do pass. To Consent Calendar. (May 7).

Apr. 24 Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Apr. 23 Read second time and amended.

Apr. 22 From committee: Amend, and do pass as amended, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. with recommendation: To Consent Calendar. (Ayes 8. Noes 0.) (April 16).

Apr. 10 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on INS. with recommendation: To Consent Calendar. Re-referred. (Ayes 14. Noes 0.) (April 9).

Feb. 28 Referred to Coms. on G.O. and INS.

Feb. 20 From printer. May be heard in committee March 21.

Feb. 19 Read first time. To print.

<i>Organization</i>	<i>Position</i>
CARF	Support

AB (Garrick) Horse racing: racing weeks: 22nd District Agricultural
2205 Association. (A-04/23/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-Referred to Com. on G.O.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-S G.O.

Calendar Events: 06/10/08 9:30 a.m. - Room 3191 SEN
GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION

Digest: Existing law generally creates district agricultural associations, which are state institutions.

Existing law, the Horse Racing Law, generally regulates horse racing and vests the administration and enforcement of the Horse Racing Law in the California Horse Racing Board. Existing law requires the board to make allocations of racing weeks as it deems appropriate and specifies the maximum number of racing weeks that may be allocated for horse racing other than at fairs, including, for thoroughbred racing, a maximum of 44 weeks per year in the northern zone, 42 weeks per year in the central zone, and 7 weeks per year in the southern zone.

This bill would, *in the event a venue used for thoroughbred racing by an association licensed to conduct thoroughbred racing in the central zone in 2008 is not available for racing in 2009 or thereafter*, permit the board to authorize the 22nd District Agricultural Association to use allocations of racing weeks from the central zone and conduct thoroughbred racing throughout the year, whether or not those racing days coincide with an annual fair, so long as the aggregate racing weeks conducted in the southern and central zones do not exceed the total aggregate racing weeks allocated, as specified.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to add Section 19531.2 to the Business and Professions Code, relating to horse racing.

History:

May 22 Referred to Com. on G.O.

May 15 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 75. Noes 0. Page 5165.)

May 15 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

May 12 Read second time. To Consent Calendar.

May 8 From committee: Do pass. To Consent Calendar. (May 7).

Apr. 24 Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Apr. 23 Read second time and amended.

Apr. 22 From committee: Amend, do pass as amended, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 12. Noes 0.) (April 16).

Apr. 3 Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Apr. 2 From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com. on G.O. Read second time and amended.

Apr. 1 Referred to Com. on G.O.

Feb. 21 From printer. May be heard in committee March 22.

Feb. 20 Read first time. To print.

Organization

CARF

[AB 2258](#) (Evans) **Horse racing: license fees: shortfalls: pro rata assessment.** (A-04/03/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-Referred to Com. on G.O.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-S G.O.

Digest: Existing law, the Horse Racing Law, provides that if the total amount paid to the state by racing associations and fairs is less than \$40,000,000 in any calendar year, all associations and fairs that conducted live racing during the year of the shortfall are required to remit certain amounts, on a pro rata basis *according to the amount handled in-state by each association or fair*, in order to attain that \$40,000,000 total.

This bill would ~~make clarifying and technical changes to this provision~~ *specify instead that if the total amount paid to the state as license fees by racing associations and fairs is less than \$40,000,000 in any calendar year, all associations and fairs that conducted live racing during the year of the shortfall*

shall remit to the state, on a pro rata basis according to the amount paid as license fees by each association or fair, the amount necessary to bring the total amount paid to the state as license fees to \$40,000,000 .

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: ~~no~~-yes . State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Section 19616.51 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to horse racing.

History:

May 22 Referred to Com. on G.O.

May 15 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 75. Noes 0. Page 5157.)

May 15 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

May 5 Read second time. To third reading.

May 1 From committee: Do pass. (Ayes 16. Noes 0.) (April 30).

Apr. 17 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 12. Noes 0.) (April 16).

Apr. 7 Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Apr. 3 Referred to Com. on G.O. From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com. on G.O. Read second time and amended.

Feb. 22 From printer. May be heard in committee March 23.

Feb. 21 Read first time. To print.

<i>Organization</i>	<i>Position</i>
CARF	Sponsor

[AB 2353](#) (Garcia) Tribal gaming: local governments. (A-05/01/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-From APPR. SUSPENSE FILE: Remains in APPR. SUSPENSE FILE.

Current Location: 05/23/2008-A APPR. SUSPENSE FILE

Digest: Existing law creates in the State Treasury the ~~Indian Gaming Revenue Sharing Trust Fund~~ and the Indian Gaming Special Distribution Fund for the receipt and deposit of moneys received by the state from certain Indian tribes pursuant to the terms of gaming compacts entered into with the state. Existing law authorizes moneys in the Indian Gaming

Special Distribution Fund to be used by the Legislature for certain purposes, including for ~~shortfalls in payments that occur in the Indian Gaming Revenue Sharing Trust Fund~~. Existing law requires that revenue contributions made to the state pursuant to the terms of specified tribal-state gaming compacts be deposited in the General Fund *grants to local government agencies impacted by tribal gaming* .

~~This bill would require that if there are insufficient funds in the Indian Gaming Special Distribution Fund to fully fund payments to eligible recipient tribes from the Indian Gaming Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, money from payments by tribes to the General Fund pursuant to any tribal-state compact be transferred to the Indian Gaming Revenue Sharing Trust Fund in an amount equal to the deficiency, in order to supplement the payments to be made from the Indian Gaming Special Distribution Fund to the Indian Gaming Revenue Sharing Trust Fund. This bill would appropriate \$30,000,000 from the Indian Gaming Special Distribution Fund to provide for grants to local government agencies pursuant to the provisions described above. The bill would state the intent of the Legislature that those funds be used for the workload associated with specified tribal-state gaming compacts.~~

Vote: majority. Appropriation: ~~no~~-yes . Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act related to gaming, and making an appropriation therefor.

History:

May 7 In committee: Set, first hearing. Referred to APPR. suspense file.

May 5 Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

May 1 From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Read second time and amended.

Apr. 24 Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Apr. 23 Read second time and amended.

Apr. 22 From committee: Amend, do pass as amended, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 8. Noes 2.) (April 16).

Apr. 7 Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Apr. 3 Referred to Com. on G.O. From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com. on G.O. Read second time and amended.

Feb. 22 From printer. May be heard in committee March 23.

Feb. 21 Read first time. To print.

Organization

CARF

[AB](#) (Mendoza) Gambling regulation. (A-04/03/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))
[2627](#)

Status: 05/15/2008-Referred to Com. on G.O.

Current Location: 05/15/2008-S G.O.

Calendar Events: 06/24/08 9:30 a.m. - Room 3191 SEN

GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION

Digest: (1) The Gambling Control Act provides for the licensure of certain individuals and establishments involved in various gambling activities, and for the regulation of those activities, by the California Gambling Control Commission. Existing law provides for the enforcement of those activities by the Department of Justice. ~~Existing law authorizes the department to summarily seize, remove, and impound any equipment, supplies, documents, or records from any premises licensed under these provisions for examination and inspection. This bill would delete the authorization for the department to take those actions summarily.~~

~~(2) Existing~~

Existing law provides that an owner of a gambling enterprise that is not a natural person shall not be eligible for a state gambling license unless certain persons individually apply for and obtain a state gambling license, except as specified.

This bill would require that, if the owner is a limited liability company, every officer, manager, member, or owner apply for and obtain a state gambling license as described above.

~~(3)~~

(2) Existing law requires the department to investigate an applicant for a gambling license. Existing law provides that, if denial of the application, or approval of the license with restrictions or conditions on the license, is recommended, the head of the entity within the department that is responsible for enforcing these provisions shall prepare and file with the commission his or her written reasons upon which the recommendation is based.

This bill would, in addition, require the head of that entity within the department to file with the commission the reasons for his or her recommendation if he or she recommends approval of the license with

restrictions or conditions.

~~(4)~~

(3) Existing law requires a limited partnership to comply with specified requirements in order to obtain a gambling license, including a requirement that the limited partnership be formed under the laws of this state.

This bill would delete the above requirement, and would impose on general partnerships the requirements for obtaining a gambling license that are applicable to limited partnerships. The bill would also require that limited liability companies comply with specified requirements in order to obtain a gambling license.

~~(5)~~

(4) Existing law requires that, to the extent required by specified provisions of law, certain persons associated with a limited partnership that holds or applies for a license to own a gambling enterprise be licensed individually.

This bill would include members and managers among the persons to whom the above requirement applies and would impose the requirement, in addition, on those persons if they are associated with a limited liability company that holds or applies for a license to own a gambling enterprise.

~~(6)~~

(5) Existing law prohibits certain security interests from being enforced without the prior approval of the commission and compliance with certain regulations, including a security interest in a security issued by a partnership, except as specified.

This bill would, in addition, prohibit enforcement of a security interest without the above approval if the security interest is in a security issued by a limited partnership or limited liability company.

~~(7)~~

(6) Existing law requires an order of the commission denying an application for a work permit ~~to~~ to be reviewed in accordance with specified provisions of law.

This bill would, in addition, apply the above requirement ~~on~~ to an order of the commission placing restrictions or conditions on a work permit.

~~(8)~~

(7) Existing law authorizes the commission to issue an order summarily suspending a person's work permit upon a finding that the suspension is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety, or general welfare. Existing law provides that the person whose

work permit is summarily suspended has a right to a hearing to commence within a specified period.

This bill would require that a hearing described above be conducted in accordance with specified provisions governing the conduct ~~to~~ of hearings by the commission.

(9)

(8) Existing law provides that any person aggrieved by a final decision or order of the commission that limits, conditions, suspends, or revokes any previously granted license or approval, made after hearing by the commission, may petition the Superior Court for the County of Sacramento for judicial review pursuant to specified provisions of law. Existing law provides that the court may summarily deny the petition, or the court may issue an alternative writ directing the commission to certify the whole record of the department in the case to the court. Existing law requires that, if an alternative writ issues, the cause be heard on the whole record of the department as certified by the commission. This bill would, instead, with respect to the above alternative writ, authorize the court to issue that writ to certify the whole record in the case to the court, and would require that, if the alternative writ issues, the cause be heard on the whole record as certified by the commission. Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Sections 19852, 19868, 19890, 19893, 19900, 19912, 19913, and 19932 of, and to amend the heading of Article 6 (commencing with Section 19890) of Chapter 5 of Division 8 of, the Business and Professions Code, relating to gambling.

History:

May 15 Referred to Com. on G.O.

May 8 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 62. Noes 10. Page 5029.)

May 8 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

Apr. 28 Read second time. To third reading.

Apr. 24 From committee: Do pass. (Ayes 16. Noes 1.) (April 23).

Apr. 10 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 11. Noes 0.) (April 9).

Apr. 7 Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Apr. 3 From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com. on G.O. Read second time and amended.

Mar. 13 Referred to Coms. on G.O. and JUD.
Feb. 25 Read first time.
Feb. 24 From printer. May be heard in committee March 25.
Feb. 22 Introduced. To print.

Organization
CARF

[AB](#) (Committee on Governmental Organization) Horse racing. (I-
[3074](#) 03/13/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-Referred to Com. on G.O.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-S G.O.

Calendar Events: 06/24/08 9:30 a.m. - Room 3191 SEN
GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION

Digest: Existing law provides that the California Horse Racing Board may authorize a California harness racing association conducting a live racing meeting to accept wagers on the full card of races conducted by another racing association on the day that other association conducts the Breeder's Crown Stakes, the Meadowlands Pace, the Hambletonian, or the North American Cup.

This bill would authorize the board to permit a California harness racing association conducting a live racing meeting to accept wagers on the full card of races conducted by another racing association on the day that other association conducts the Kentucky Futurity.

Under existing law, all revenues distributed to the state as license fees from horse racing are required to be deposited in the Fair and Exposition Fund and are continuously appropriated to the Department of Food and Agriculture for various regulatory and general governmental purposes. This bill would authorize additional wagering, and would increase correspondingly the amount of continuously appropriated license fees, thereby making an appropriation. This bill would also result in a change in state taxes for the purpose of increasing state revenues within the meaning of Section 3 of Article XIII A of the California Constitution, thereby requiring a 2/3 vote for passage.

Vote: 2/3. Appropriation: yes. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Section 19596 of the Business and Professions

Code, relating to horse racing, and making an appropriation therefor.

History:

May 22 Referred to Com. on G.O.

May 15 Read third time, passed, and to Senate. (Ayes 70. Noes 2. Page 5160.)

May 15 In Senate. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment.

May 5 Read second time. To third reading.

May 1 From committee: Do pass. (Ayes 16. Noes 0.) (April 30).

Apr. 17 From committee: Do pass, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. Re-referred. (Ayes 11. Noes 0.) (April 16).

Mar. 24 Referred to Com. on G.O.

Mar. 14 From printer. May be heard in committee April 13.

Mar. 13 Read first time. To print.

Organization

CARF

SB 157 (Wiggins) **Alcoholic beverages: winegrower's license.** (A-05/20/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/20/2008-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Current Location: 05/20/2008-A G.O.

Digest: (1) The Alcoholic Beverage Control Act authorizes the issuance of a wine sales permit to any licensee under a winegrower's license, which authorizes the sale of bottled wine produced by the winegrowers at specified events that are sponsored by an organization that is exempt from taxation, as specified.

This bill would expand the list of organizations that are exempt from taxation, as specified, that are authorized to sponsor specified events.

(2) The Alcoholic Beverage Control Act provides that nothing in that law prohibits a winegrower or a beer and wine wholesaler, as specified, from giving or selling wine to certain nonprofit organizations, as specified, at prices other than those contained in schedules filed with the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control.

This bill would expand the list of nonprofit organizations that are authorized to receive or purchase wine at prices other than those contained in schedules filed with the Department of Alcoholic Beverage

Control.

(3) The Alcoholic Beverage Control Act provides that a violation of its provisions is a misdemeanor, unless otherwise specified. This bill, by changing the definition of an existing crime, imposes a state-mandated local program.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act for a specified reason.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: yes.

Laws: An act to amend Sections 23399.6 and 25503.9 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to alcoholic beverages.

History:

May 20 From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Apr. 28 To Com. on G.O.

Jan. 30 Read third time. Passed. (Ayes 40. Noes 0. Page 2910.) To Assembly.

Jan. 30 In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

Jan. 24 To Special Consent Calendar.

Jan. 23 Read second time. To third reading.

Jan. 22 From committee: Be placed on second reading file pursuant to Senate Rule 28.8.

Jan. 14 Set for hearing January 22.

Jan. 9 Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Jan. 8 From committee: Do pass as amended, but first amend, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. with recommendation: To Consent Calendar. (Ayes 5. Noes 0. Page 2779.)

Jan. 7 Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Dec. 18 Set for hearing January 8 in G.O. pending receipt.

Sept. 7 From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on RLS.

Apr. 10 To Com. on RLS.

Jan. 31 From print. May be acted upon on or after March 2.

Jan. 30 Introduced. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment. To print.

Organization
CARF

Subject
Tribal
Gaming

SB (Battin) Tribal gaming: gaming device licenses. (A-
1201 04/30/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-A DESK

Digest: Existing federal law, the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act of 1988, provides for the negotiation and execution of tribal-state gaming compacts for the purpose of authorizing certain types of gaming on Indian lands within a state. The California Constitution authorizes the Governor to negotiate and conclude compacts, subject to ratification by the Legislature. Existing law ratifies a number of tribal-state gaming compacts between the State of California and specified Indian tribes executed in 1999. Those compacts set certain limits on the number of gaming device licenses available to each tribe. Existing law provides that any other tribal-state gaming compact entered into between the State of California and a federally recognized Indian tribe that is executed after September 10, 1999, is ratified if certain circumstances exist.

This bill would enact statutory provisions relating to matters addressed in the compacts ratified as described above. The bill would provide that the aggregate limit of gaming device licenses available for issuance under those compacts shall be 122,000, and would further provide that certain gaming device licenses available for issuance under subsequent compact amendments shall not be counted in determining whether that aggregate limit has been reached. The bill would require that, upon application by a tribe with a tribal-state gaming compact ratified as described above, the California Gambling Control Commission allocate gaming device licenses to the tribe in accordance with the tribe's gaming compact, but would prohibit the number of licenses allocated to a tribe from exceeding the maximum number of gaming device licenses allowed under the gaming compact.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: ~~no~~yes . State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Section 12012.25 of the Government Code,

relating to gaming.

History:

May 22 Read third time. Passed. (Ayes 25. Noes 5.) To Assembly.
May 22 In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.
May 21 Read second time. To third reading.
May 20 From committee: Do pass. (Ayes 8. Noes 2. Page 3838.)
May 12 Set, first hearing. Hearing canceled at the request of author.
May 12 Set for hearing May 19.
May 2 Set for hearing May 12.
May 1 Re-referred to Com. on APPR. pursuant to Joint Rule 10.5.
Apr. 30 Read second time. Amended. To third reading.
Apr. 29 From committee: Do pass as amended. (Ayes 8. Noes 1. Page 3549.)
Mar. 27 Hearing postponed by committee. Set for hearing April 22.
Mar. 25 From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on G.O.
Mar. 13 Set for hearing April 8.
Feb. 20 To Com. on G.O.
Feb. 14 From print. May be acted upon on or after March 15.
Feb. 13 Introduced. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment. To print.

Organization

CARF

SB (Vincent) Tribal gaming: satellite wagering. (A-05/13/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))
1570

Status: 05/22/2008-From APPR. SUSPENSE FILE: Do pass.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-S APPR. SUSPENSE FILE

Digest: Existing federal law, the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act of 1988, provides for the negotiation and execution of tribal-state gaming compacts for the purpose of authorizing certain types of gaming on Indian lands within a state. The California Constitution authorizes the Governor to negotiate and conclude compacts, subject to ratification by the Legislature.

This bill would provide that, when negotiating with a tribal government for a tribal-state gaming compact pursuant to those provisions of the

California Constitution, the Governor shall use his or her best efforts to ensure that satellite wagering on horse racing is one of the forms of gaming offered at any gaming facility authorized under the compact. The bill would require any payments to the state for receiving the audio-visual signal on horse racing to be deposited in the Maddy Fund for Horse Racing, as established by the bill, and would require certain amounts in that fund to be used for specified purposes. The bill would continuously appropriate all moneys in the Maddy Fund for Horse Racing to the Horse Racing Board for the benefit of the fair racing associations, racing associations, and the horsemen and horsewomen involved in horse racing, as specified.

By establishing a continuously appropriated fund, this bill would make an appropriation.

Vote: 2/3. Appropriation: yes. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to add Section 12012.91 to the Government Code, relating to gaming, and making an appropriation therefor.

History:

May 15 Set for hearing May 22.

May 13 From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

May 5 Placed on APPR. suspense file.

Apr. 28 Set for hearing May 5.

Apr. 23 From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Apr. 16 From committee: Do pass, but first be re-referred to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 8. Noes 1. Page 3431.) Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Apr. 10 From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Apr. 3 Hearing postponed by committee. Set for hearing April 15.

Apr. 2 From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Mar. 13 Set for hearing April 8.

Mar. 6 To Com. on G.O.

Feb. 25 Read first time.

Feb. 24 From print. May be acted upon on or after March 25.

Feb. 22 Introduced. To Com. on RLS. for assignment. To print.

Organization

CARF

SB (Florez) Problem gambling: therapist training and treatment programs.

1616 (A-04/09/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-From APPR. SUSPENSE FILE: Not heard.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-S APPR. SUSPENSE FILE

Digest: Existing law establishes the Office of Problem and Pathological Gambling in the State Department of Alcohol and Drug Programs. The office is responsible for developing a problem gambling prevention program and a program to support treatment services for California residents with problem and pathological gambling issues. Existing law requires that implementation of these programs be based upon allocation priorities established by the State Department of Alcohol and Drug Programs, subject to appropriation of funding for these purposes. The problem gambling prevention program is given first priority for funding appropriated to the office.

This bill would ~~authorize~~ *require* the office, *subject to appropriation by the Legislature*, to establish a program, through grant or contract, to increase the number of qualified problem and pathological gambling treatment therapists and to establish a stepped-care plan of treatment to provide comprehensive care to problem and pathological gamblers and their families. The bill would require the office, *subject to appropriation by the Legislature*, to award funds to design therapist training and statewide treatment programs for problem and pathological gambling, together with a statewide training and treatment oversight system, as specified. The bill would require the office, beginning July 1, 2009, and annually each July 1 thereafter, subject to appropriation by the Legislature, to award grants in connection with the therapist training and treatment programs, and the oversight system. ~~The bill would require the Bureau of State Audits, beginning July 1, 2012, and every 3 years thereafter, to report to the Governor and the Legislature on the effectiveness and use of funding of the therapist training and treatment programs.~~

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Section 4369 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, relating to gambling.

History:

May 15 Set for hearing May 22.

Apr. 21 Placed on APPR. suspense file.

Apr. 10 Set for hearing April 21.

Apr. 9 Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Apr. 8 From committee: Do pass as amended, but first amend, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 7. Noes 3. Page 3286.)

Mar. 19 Set for hearing April 2.

Mar. 6 To Com. on HEALTH.

Feb. 25 Read first time.

Feb. 23 From print. May be acted upon on or after March 24.

Feb. 22 Introduced. To Com. on RLS. for assignment. To print.

Organization

CARF

[SB](#) (Negrete McLeod) **Horse racing: out-of-state thoroughbred races:**
[1635](#) **number of races.** (I-02/22/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

Status: 05/22/2008-To Com. on G.O.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-A G.O.

Digest: Existing law, the Horse Racing Law, provides that a thoroughbred racing association or fair may distribute the audiovisual signal and accept wagers on the results of out-of-state thoroughbred races during the calendar period the association or fair is conducting a race meeting, provided that the total number of thoroughbred races on which wagers are accepted statewide in any given year does not exceed the total number of thoroughbred races on which wagers were accepted in 1998. Existing law further prohibits the total number of thoroughbred races imported by associations or fairs on a statewide basis from exceeding 23 per day on days when live thoroughbred or fair racing is being conducted in the state, except as provided.

This bill would eliminate the ceiling on the number of races as were wagered on in 1998 and would change the total number of thoroughbred races authorized to be imported by associations or fairs on a statewide basis to 40 per day.

Under existing law, revenues distributed to the state as license fees from horse racing are required to be deposited in the Fair and Exposition Fund

and are continuously appropriated to the Department of Food and Agriculture for various regulatory and general governmental purposes. This bill would authorize additional wagering and additional races, and would increase the amount of continuously appropriated license fees, thereby making an appropriation.

Vote: 2/3. Appropriation: yes. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Section 19596.2 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to horse racing, and making an appropriation therefor.

History:

May 22 To Com. on G.O.

May 13 In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

May 12 Read third time. Passed. (Ayes 32. Noes 3. Page 3751.) To Assembly.

May 7 Read second time. To third reading.

May 6 From committee: Be placed on second reading file pursuant to Senate Rule 28.8.

Apr. 28 Set for hearing May 5.

Apr. 16 From committee: Do pass, but first be re-referred to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 10. Noes 0. Page 3432.) Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Apr. 3 Hearing postponed by committee. Set for hearing April 15.

Mar. 13 Set for hearing April 8.

Mar. 6 To Com. on G.O.

Feb. 25 Read first time.

Feb. 24 From print. May be acted upon on or after March 25.

Feb. 22 Introduced. To Com. on RLS. for assignment. To print.

Organization

CARF

SB (Florez) California State Lottery. (A-04/10/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))

1679

Status: 05/19/2008-Set for hearing June 10.

Current Location: 04/10/2008-S G.O.

Calendar Events: 06/10/08 9:30 a.m. - Room 3191 SEN

GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION

Digest: (1) The California State Lottery Act of 1984, enacted by initiative, authorizes a California State Lottery and provides for its operation and administration by the California State Lottery Commission and the Director of the California State Lottery, with certain limitations. Existing law establishes the State Lottery Fund, which is continuously appropriated for the purposes of the California State Lottery. Existing law requires that not less than 84% of the total annual revenues from the sale of state lottery tickets or shares be returned to the public in the form of prizes and net revenues to benefit public education, and that no more than 16% of those revenues be used for expenses of the lottery. Existing law requires that all unclaimed prize money revert to the benefit of public education, and that all of the interest earned upon funds held in the State Lottery Fund be allocated to the benefit of public education. This bill would require, instead, that not less than 87% of the total annual revenues from the sale of state lottery tickets or shares, plus the ~~unclaimed prize revenues and~~ interest earnings described above, be used for prizes and to benefit education, and no more than 13% be used for lottery expenses. By changing the purpose for which moneys in a continuously appropriated fund may be used, the bill would make an appropriation.

(2) Existing law requires that 50% of the total annual lottery revenues be returned to the public in the form of prizes, and that 34% of those revenues be used to benefit public education.

This bill would require, instead, that not less than 50% of the total annual lottery revenues be returned to the public in the form of prizes. The bill would delete the requirement that 34% of those revenues be used to benefit education, and would provide, instead, that the percentage of the total annual revenues to be allocated for public education shall be established by the commission, subject to the requirement that this percentage be set at a level designed to maximize the total net revenues for public education and to ensure that the total net revenues for public education during any fiscal year are not less than ~~\$1,200,000,000~~ \$1,280,000,000 .

(3) Existing law requires that, to the extent that expenses of the lottery are less than 16% of the total annual revenues, any surplus funds be allocated to the benefit of public education.

The bill would provide, instead, that, to the extent that expenses of the lottery are less than 13% of the total annual revenues, any surplus funds may be carried over from year to year upon a determination by the commission that the carryover furthers the purpose of the act, provided

that the aggregate amount of revenues allocated for expenses does not exceed 16% of the total annual revenues for that operating year.

The bill would require the commission, each fiscal year, to commit at least \$1,000,000 to the Office of Problem and Pathological Gambling within the State Department of Alcohol and Drug Programs for problem gambling awareness and treatment programs, and would require the director of that office to report to the commission on the effectiveness of problem gambling awareness and treatment efforts.

(4) Existing law authorizes the commission to offer lottery games, and defines "lottery game" for the purposes of these provisions.

This bill would provide that the definition of "lottery game" includes games in which prizes are determined on a parimutuel basis and games in which prizes are fixed in advance of the draw ~~but in which the total number of those prizes is not determined in advance of the draw, provided that a specified condition is met. By authorizing new sources of revenue to be deposited in a continuously appropriated fund, the bill would make an appropriation and the total number of those prizes is determined in advance of the draw .~~

~~(5) Existing law prohibits a lottery game offered by the California State Lottery from using the theme of roulette, dice, baccarat, blackjack, Lucky 7s, draw poker, slot machines, or dog racing. Existing law prohibits the commission from making certain changes in the types of games authorized or methods of delivery of those games unless specified conditions are met.~~

~~This bill would delete those prohibitions.~~

~~(6)~~

(5) Existing law prohibits changes from being made in the types of games or methods of their delivery that incorporate new technologies or media that did not exist, were not widely available, or were not commercially feasible at the time of the enactment of the act, unless specified conditions are met.

This bill would delete that prohibition.

~~(7)~~

(6) Existing law allows the commission to adopt regulations to authorize the use of an electronic or electromechanical device to dispense lottery tickets to be used in the play of any lottery game if the device satisfies certain specifications.

This bill would, instead, allow the commission to adopt regulations to authorize the use of an electronic or electromechanical device to dispense lottery tickets to be used in the play of any lottery game if the device

does not itself determine winning outcomes and thus become the object of play. *The electronic or electromechanical device would be prohibited from being a slot machine or video lottery terminal.*

~~(8)~~

(7) The California State Lottery Act of 1984, an initiative measure, specifies that none of its provisions may be changed except to further its purpose by a bill passed by a 2/3 vote of each house of the Legislature and signed by the Governor.

This bill would declare that it furthers the purpose of the act and would require a 2/3 vote.

(8) This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately as an urgency statute.

Vote: 2/3. Appropriation: yes. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to amend Sections 8880.4, 8880.12, 8880.28, 8880.335, 8880.63, and 8880.64 of the Government Code, relating to the California State Lottery, making an appropriation therefor, and declaring the urgency thereof, to take effect immediately.

History:

May 19 Set for hearing June 10.

Apr. 10 Set, first hearing. Hearing canceled at the request of author. From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Referred to Com. on G.O.

Apr. 3 Hearing postponed by committee. Set for hearing April 15.

Mar. 19 Set for hearing April 8.

Mar. 13 To Com. on G.O.

Feb. 25 Read first time.

Feb. 24 From print. May be acted upon on or after March 25.

Feb. 22 Introduced. To Com. on RLS. for assignment. To print.

Organization

CARF

[SB](#) (Florez) Tribal gaming: casino location. (A-04/16/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))
[1695](#)

Status: 05/13/2008-In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

Current Location: 05/13/2008-A DESK

Digest: Existing federal law, the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act of 1988, provides for the negotiation and execution of tribal-state gaming compacts for the purpose of authorizing certain types of gaming on Indian lands within a state. The California Constitution authorizes the Governor to negotiate and conclude compacts with federally recognized tribes, subject to ratification by the Legislature.

This bill would prohibit the Governor from negotiating or concluding a gaming compact with a tribe that does not have land held in trust on which the gaming is to occur ~~and~~ or that is not federally recognized.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to add Section 12012.92 to the Government Code, relating to gaming.

History:

May 13 In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

May 12 Read third time. Passed. (Ayes 31. Noes 4. Page 3748.) To Assembly.

Apr. 29 Read second time. To third reading.

Apr. 28 From committee: Be placed on second reading file pursuant to Senate Rule 28.8.

Apr. 17 Set for hearing April 28.

Apr. 16 Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Apr. 15 From committee: Do pass as amended, but first amend, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 9. Noes 1. Page 3432.)

Apr. 10 From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on G.O.

Apr. 3 Hearing postponed by committee. Set for hearing April 15.

Mar. 19 Set for hearing April 8.

Mar. 13 To Com. on G.O.

Feb. 25 Read first time.

Feb. 24 From print. May be acted upon on or after March 25.

Feb. 22 Introduced. To Com. on RLS. for assignment. To print.

Organization

CARF

[SB](#) (Florez) **Gambling licenses: inactive status.** (A-04/21/2008 [html](#) [pdf](#))
[1697](#)

Status: 05/22/2008-To Com. on G.O.

Current Location: 05/22/2008-A G.O.

Digest: The Gambling Control Act provides for the licensure of certain individuals and establishments involved in various gambling activities, and for the regulation of those activities, by the California Gambling Control Commission. Existing law requires specified persons involved in those gambling activities to obtain and maintain gambling licenses or key employee licenses issued by the commission.

This bill would allow the holder of a gambling license or key employee license to petition the commission to place that license on an inactive status for no more than 3 years. The bill would prohibit a licensee, while his or her license is inactive, from ~~owning~~-working in ~~or~~ operating ~~a~~ gambling establishment pursuant to the inactive license. The bill would require a licensee, in order to place a license on inactive status and maintain that status, to pay to the commission, each year, 50% of the license fee that would be required for an active license.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

Laws: An act to add Section 19851.5 to the Business and Professions Code, relating to gambling.

History:

May 22 To Com. on G.O.

May 13 In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

May 12 Read third time. Passed. (Ayes 25. Noes 8. Page 3751.) To Assembly.

May 7 Read second time. To third reading.

May 6 From committee: Be placed on second reading file pursuant to Senate Rule 28.8.

Apr. 28 Set for hearing May 5.

Apr. 21 Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Apr. 17 Joint Rule 62(a) file notice suspended. (Ayes 23. Noes 13. Page 3468.) From committee: Do pass as amended, but first amend, and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 6. Noes 0. Page 3489.)

Apr. 14 From committee with author's amendments. Read second time. Amended. Re-referred to Com. on RLS. Re-referred to Com. on G.O. Set

for hearing April 17 pending rules waiver.

Mar. 13 To Com. on RLS.

Feb. 25 Read first time.

Feb. 23 From print. May be acted upon on or after March 24.

Feb. 22 Introduced. To Com. on RLS. for assignment. To print.

Organization

CARF

Total Position Forms: 20